
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
Paul Casey 

City Administrator 
 Gregg Hart 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Randy Rowse 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Ariel Pierre Calonne 
City Attorney 

Dale Francisco 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Frank Hotchkiss 
Cathy Murillo 
Bendy White 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
 

NOVEMBER 17, 2015 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  If you need auxiliary aids or services or staff assistance to attend or participate 
in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s Office at 564-5305.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior 
to the meeting will usually enable the City to make reasonable arrangements. Specialized services, such as sign language 
interpretation or documents in Braille, may require additional lead time to arrange. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 

11/17/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

 12:30 p.m. - Ordinance Committee Meeting, Council Chamber 
 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Begins 
 5:00 p.m. - Recess 
 6:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Reconvenes 
 
 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING S 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 12:30 P.M. IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER 
(120.03) 

Subject:  Proposal To Establish A Definition For "Vessel" For Craft Berthed, 
Moored Or Anchored In The Harbor District 

Recommendation:  That the Ordinance Committee forward to Council for introduction 
An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code By Amending Section 17.04.010 and Adding Section 17.12.050 
Establishing a Definition of "Vessel" for Craft  Berthed, Moored or Anchored in the 
Harbor District. 



 

11/17/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
 

AFTERNOON SESSION 
AFTERNOON  SE SSION 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Subject:  Receipt Of Grant From Santa Barbara County Community 
Awareness & Emergency Response For Outreach Materials In Spanish 
(520.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the receipt of grant funds totaling $750 from the Santa Barbara 

County Community Awareness & Emergency Response Committee; and 
B. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues by $750 in the Fire 

Department's General Fund Emergency Services & Public Education 
Division for Fiscal Year 2016. 

 
 

2. Subject:  Five-Year Lease Agreement With The National Park Service, 
Channel Islands National Marine Sanctuary, And The Santa Barbara 
Maritime Museum For Visitor Center (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve a five-year lease agreement with the 
National Park Service, Channel Islands National Marine Sanctuary, and the 
Santa Barbara Maritime Museum for a 547 square-foot public Visitor Center 
located on the third floor of the Waterfront Center Building at 113 Harbor Way. 
  



 

11/17/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
3. Subject:  Approval Of Emergency Purchase Order For Lugar Del Consuelo 

Sewer Main Replacement (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve an Emergency Purchase Order to 
Tierra Contracting, Inc., in the amount of $36,400 to replace a failing sewer main 
on Lugar Del Consuelo. 
  

4. Subject:  Professional Services Agreement For Property Tax Management 
Services (270.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve and authorize the Finance Director to execute a professional 

services agreement with HdL Coren & Cone to provide property tax 
management services, secured and unsecured parcel audits, budget 
projections, and Successor Agency support; and 

B. Allocate $14,000 from General Fund appropriated reserves to the Fiscal 
Year 2016 Finance Department budget to cover the cost of the contract. 

 
 
NOTICES 

5. The City Clerk has on Thursday, November 12, 2015, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

6. Receipt of communication advising of vacancy created on the Building and Fire 
Code of Appeals with the resignation of Stephen Metsch.  This vacancy will be 
part of the next recruitment. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 
 
 
REPORT FROM THE ORDINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

7. Subject:  Stage Three Drought Update (540.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive an update on the status of the current 
drought, drought-response capital projects, and continuing conservation efforts. 
  



 

11/17/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

8. Subject:  Request From Councilmembers Hotchkiss And Francisco 
Regarding The Average Unit-Size Density Incentive Program (640.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council consider the request from Councilmembers 
Hotchkiss and Francisco regarding the Average Unit-Size Density (AUD) 
Incentive Program. 
  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

9. Subject:  Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Approval Of 806 Alberta 
Avenue (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Deny the appeal of Catherine "Lily" Bastug Vicenti, David Hale, James 

and Karen Hurst, Roberta VanRossen, Susan Lafond, and Brian King, and 
uphold the Architectural Board of Review's Project Design Approval of the 
proposed accessory dwelling unit and new garages at 806 Alberta 
Avenue; and 

B. Direct Staff to return to Council with Decision and Findings reflecting the 
outcome of the appeal. 

 
 
COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
 
RECESS 
EVENING SESSION 



 

11/17/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 

EVENING SESSION 
 
 
RECONVENE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

10. Subject:  Interviews For City Advisory Groups (140.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold interviews of applicants to various City 
Advisory Groups. 
 (Continued from October 27, 2015, Item No. 16) 
  

ADJOURNMENT 

 
 



File Code 120.03 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

 
DATE: November 17, 2015 Randy Rowse, Chair 
TIME:  12:30 p.m. Frank Hotchkiss 
PLACE:  Council Chambers Cathy Murillo 
                             
 
Office of the City                                                           Office of the City 
Administrator                                                                 Attorney 
 
Kate Whan   Ariel Pierre Calonne 
Administrative Analyst City Attorney 
 
                                                

 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
 

 
1. Subject:  Proposal To Establish A Definition For “Vessel” For Craft Berthed, 

Moored Or Anchored In The Harbor District 
 
 

Recommendation:  That the Ordinance Committee forward to Council for 
introduction An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending the 
Santa Barbara Municipal Code By Amending Section 17.04.010 and Adding 
Section 17.12.050 Establishing a Definition of “Vessel” for Craft Berthed, Moored or 
Anchored in the Harbor District. 

 
 



File Code No.  120.03 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2015 
 
TO: Ordinance Committee 
 
FROM: Operations Division, Waterfront Department 
 
SUBJECT: Proposal To Establish A Definition For “Vessel” For Craft Berthed, 

Moored Or Anchored In The Harbor District 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Ordinance Committee forward to Council for introduction An Ordinance of the 
Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending the Santa Barbara Municipal Code By 
Amending Section 17.04.010 and Adding Section 17.12.050 Establishing a Definition of 
“Vessel” for Craft  Berthed, Moored or Anchored in the Harbor District. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
For years, there has existed an interest among some members of the public in placing 
man-made floating objects in the Harbor District of the City, especially in Santa Barbara 
Harbor. Owners of these floating objects (“floating homes”) that are designed to remain 
stationary and never leave their slips, have found ways to meet the Department’s 
“operability” requirement by demonstrating, solely for purposes of passing the test, an 
ability to maneuver safely under their own power from their point of origin to the open 
waters of the Pacific and back to their point of origin. Typically, this is done through 
deployment of small outboard engines, make-shift steering stations and temporary 
lookouts, all for the purpose of passing a single at-sea test—a purely ceremonial 
exercise without intent of using the floating object for actual boating purposes. 
 
Berthing, mooring or anchoring these floating objects in the Harbor District directly 
conflicts with Coastal Act Section 30224Z: “Increased recreational boating use of 
coastal waters shall be encouraged,” and Section 30234: “Existing commercial fishing 
and recreational boating harbor space shall not be reduced unless the demand for 
those facilities no longer exists or adequate substitute space has been provided.” Also, 
the Harbor Master Plan states, “The Harbor shall be a working harbor with priority given 
to ocean dependent uses, such as commercial fishing and recreational boating.” 
 
Finally, using slips for floating homes that remain stationary does not serve the needs of 
persons on the Department’s Slip Waiting List, some of whom have lingered decades 
on the list awaiting the opportunity to rent a slip and go boating. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Proposal To Establish A Definition For “Vessel” For Craft Berthed, Moored Or Anchored 
In The Harbor District 
November 17, 2015 
Page 2 

 

DISCUSSION: 
 
In 2013, the United States Supreme Court took up the question of whether all floating 
homes are “vessels” under Maritime Law. The Court held that not every structure that 
floats is a vessel. Instead, it held that, “A floating residence is not a vessel… ‘unless a 
reasonable observer, looking to the home’s physical characteristics and activities, would 
consider it to be designed to any practical degree for carrying people or things on 
water.’” 
 
The Supreme Court’s recognition that not all floating objects are “vessels” has provided 
guidance to staff in developing a workable definition of “vessel” that precludes berthing, 
mooring or anchoring floating objects not designed or constructed for carrying people or 
goods over water (e.g. floating residences not intended for ocean travel) in the Harbor 
District. Working with the City Attorney’s Office, staff drafted a definition of “Vessel” to 
be included in Title 17 of the City’s Municipal Code that would serve the purpose of 
preserving use of the Harbor District for “vessels” that can actually be used for 
recreational boating or fishing. 
 
There currently exists four floating objects in the Harbor District that do not meet the 
proposed definition of Vessel, and Waterfront staff consistently fields inquiries for more.  
The proposed amendment to the Municipal Code will not affect these existing floating 
homes. Only floating objects attempting to berth, moor or anchor in the Harbor District 
after December 1, 2015, or the effective date of the Ordinance amendment, whichever 
is later, will be precluded from doing so. 
 
Additionally, the proposal to add a definition of “Vessel” to the Municipal Code has no 
effect on the Waterfront Department’s liveaboard program. 
 
Staff presented this proposal for discussion at the September, 2013 Harbor Commission 
meeting, returning to the Commission in September, 2014, earning conceptual approval 
of a proposed definition for “Vessel”. Working with the City Attorney’s Office, staff 
returned to the Commission in September, 2015 with proposed Municipal Code 
language that would codify these proposals, and recommended City Council approval. 
The Commission supported that recommendation. 
 
Adoption of the Ordinance is Categorically Exempt under the California Environmental 
Quality Act, Guidelines Section 15305, Minor Alteration to Land Use Limitations, and 
because it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity may 
have a significant effect on the environment. 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
With adoption of the proposed Ordinance, the City will have, as of the effective date of 
the Ordinance, the legal means to prevent the berthing, mooring or anchoring of man-
made floating objects that do not meet the definition of “Vessel.” 



Council Agenda Report 
Proposal To Establish A Definition For “Vessel” For Craft Berthed, Moored Or Anchored 
In The Harbor District 
November 17, 2015 
Page 3 

 

 
This, in turn, will advance and protect the City’s priority obligations to accommodate 
recreational boating and commercial fishing. 
 
ATTACHMENT: Proposed Ordinance 
 
PREPARED BY: Mick Kronman, Harbor Operations Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Scott Riedman, Waterfront Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 
STAFF DRAFT 11/17/15 SHOWING 
CHANGE FROM CURRENT CODE 

 
ORDINANCE NO. __________ 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA AMENDING THE 
SANTA BARBARA MUNICIPAL CODE BY 
AMENDING SECTION 17.04.010 AND 
ADDING SECTION 17.12.050 TO ESTABLISH 
A DEFINITION OF “VESSEL” FOR CRAFT 
BERTHED, MOORED OR ANCHORED IN 
THE HARBOR DISTRICT. 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 

FOLLOWS: 
 
 
 

SECTION 1.  Section 17.04.010 of Chapter 17.04 of Title 17 of the Santa 
Barbara Municipal Code is amended to read as follows: 
 
 
 
17.04.010.     Definitions. 

 
The following words and phrases shall have the meaning indicated, unless the 

context or usage clearly requires a different meaning: 

A. ANCHOR.  A heavy metal device, fastened to chain or line, designed to 

help hold a vessel in position. 

B. ANCHORING EQUIPMENT.  An Anchor, line or chain and associated 

gear that is retrievable, stowable, non-permanent ground tackle designed to engage the 

seafloor and through its resistance to drag maintain a vessel within a given radius.   

C. BERTH.  A water surface area, delineated by either floating or fixed dock 

structures, intended for the purposes of embarking, disembarking and the wet storage 

of boats. A Berth is also known as a “Slip.”   



 2 

D. CITY-APPROVED MOORING INSPECTOR.  An individual who, by 

satisfactorily demonstrating appropriate qualifications, has been included on a City-

approved list of inspectors eligible to install, inspect and repair ground tackle for 

Mooring Permittees in the Santa Barbara Mooring Area. 

E. CITY PIER.  The City Pier is located adjacent to the Breakwater at the 

Southeastern end of Harbor Way in the Santa Barbara Harbor formerly known as the 

"Navy Pier."   

F. DINGHY.  A small boat used as a tender to a larger vessel.  A Dinghy is 

also known as a “Skiff.”  

G. DISCHARGE.  To spill, leak, pump, pour, emit, empty, dump, deposit, or 

throw.  

H. DOCK.  A platform, either floating or fixed, provided in a marina for the 

wet storage of a boat and pedestrian access for and from the boat. 

I. DOCKAGE.  The daily rate assessed a vessel which ties up to any wharf 

or pier in the Harbor.  

J. FLOAT.  A wharf, pier, quay or landing.   

K. GROUND TACKLE.  All equipment used for Mooring or anchoring a 

vessel securely to the seafloor. 

L. HARBOR.  The area depicted on Exhibit “A” attached to Chapter 17.20 

generally bounded by and including Stearns Wharf on the east, the Breakwater on the 

south, the seawall abutting Harbor Way and the Harbor commercial area on the west, 

the concrete walkway and seawall along currently-designated Marinas 2, 3 and 4 and 

including the area commonly known as West Beach on the north.   



 3 

M. HARBOR DISTRICT.  The entire Waterfront of the City, including all 

navigable waters and all tidelands and submerged lands, whether filled or unfilled, 

situated below the line of mean high tide, bounded by the limits of the City as now fixed 

or hereafter may be extended. 

N. HARBORMASTER.  The person designated by the Waterfront Director as 

the division manager of the Operations Division of the Waterfront Department.   

O. HARBOR PATROL SUPERVISOR.  The person designated by the 

Waterfront Director as the supervisor of the Harbor Patrol Officers in the Operations 

Division of the Waterfront Department.   

P. LIVE-ABOARD.  The use or occupancy of a vessel for habitation on any 

four (4) nights during a seven (7) day period.  The term does not include the vacation 

use of a vessel, as defined in Section 17.18.090, by its registered owner and the 

owner's guests. 

Q. MARINA.  A connected system of slips in the Harbor. 

R. MARINE SANITATION DEVICE.  Equipment on board a vessel that is 

designed to receive, retain, treat, process, or discharge sewage.   

S. MINIMUM GROUND TACKLE SPECIFICATIONS.  The specifications for 

Ground Tackle used to moor a vessel, attached as Attachment “A” to the Resolution of 

the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Establishing Minimum Ground Tackle 

Specifications and Procedures for Installing, Inspecting and Repairing Moorings in the 

Santa Barbara Mooring Area, as may be amended from time to time by the Harbor 

Commission, with which all vessels intending to moor in the City of Santa Barbara 

Mooring Area must comply.   



 4 

T. MOORING.  An Anchor, chain, buoy, pendant, snubber, chafing gear and 

associated equipment, not typically stowed or carried aboard a vessel when underway, 

used to engage the seafloor and through its resistance to drag maintain a vessel within 

a given radius.  

U. MOORING INSPECTION REPORT.  A City form on which a City-

Approved Mooring Inspector provides the results and recommendations of a Mooring 

Inspection.   

V. MOORING PERMIT.  An annual non-transferable Mooring Site rental 

agreement issued by the Waterfront Director to a Mooring Permittee to place a Mooring 

and vessel in a Mooring Site in the Santa Barbara Mooring Area.   

W. MOORING SITE.  A designated location within the Santa Barbara Mooring 

Area assigned by the Waterfront Director through a Mooring Permit to a Mooring 

Permittee for purposes of Mooring a vessel.   

X. OPERABLE.  A vessel’s ability to maneuver safely under its own power 

from any place in the Harbor District to the open waters of the Pacific Ocean and back 

to its point of origin.   

Y. RODE.  All gear, collectively, that lies between a boat and its Anchor.   

Z. SANTA BARBARA MOORING AREA.  The area located in the City of 

Santa Barbara tidal waters east of Stearns Wharf as depicted on the reference map 

attached as Exhibit “A” to Chapter 17.20.   

AA. SEASONAL ANCHORAGE.  The area depicted on the reference map 

attached as Exhibit “A” to Chapter 17.20.  



 5 

BB. SEWAGE.  Human body wastes and the wastes from toilets and other 

receptacles intended to receive or retain body waste.   

CC. SLIP.  A docking space for a vessel within the Harbor.   

DD. SLIP FEE.  The monthly license fee paid by a slip permittee for berthing 

privileges in the Harbor, including the monthly fees paid for live-aboard privileges if 

applicable.  

EE. SLIP PERMIT.  A slip rental agreement issued by the Waterfront Director 

to a Slip Permittee to berth a vessel in a slip in the Santa Barbara Harbor.   

FF. SPECIAL ACTIVITY MOORING PERMIT.  A Mooring Permit issued by 

the Waterfront Director to individuals, organizations and governmental entities found to 

be operating research, scientific, clean-up or other functions necessary to the long-term 

health and operation of the Harbor District and marine environment, or critical to the 

safety, welfare and protection of persons and assets within the Harbor District.   

GG. STEARNS WHARF.  The wharf structure and all of its improvements 

located at the foot of State Street.   

HH. TRANSFER FEE.  The fee charged to transfer a Slip Permit.   

II. VESSEL.  A self-propelled craft whose physical characteristics indicate 

that it was designed and constructed for the purpose of carrying people or goods over 

water.II 

JJ. WATERFRONT.  The Harbor, Stearns Wharf, West Beach and all City-

owned or -operated parking lots and related structures and facilities along Cabrillo 

Boulevard or Shoreline Drive within the City of Santa Barbara. JJ 



 6 

KK. WHARFAGE.  The hourly rate assessed any vessel which uses or is tied 

up to any structure in the Harbor for the loading or unloading of merchandise, excluding 

the products of commercial fishing.  KK 

LL. YEAR-ROUND ANCHORAGE.  The area depicted on the reference map 

attached as Exhibit “A” to Chapter 17.20.   

 
SECTION 2.  Chapter 17.12 of Title 17 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is 

amended by adding Section 17.12.050 which reads as follows: 
 
 
 

17.12.050.  Vessels Berthed, Moored or Anchored in the Harbor District. 

After December 1, 2015, only Vessels as defined in Section 17.04.010 II. shall be 

berthed, moored or anchored in the Harbor District. Man-made floating objects that are 

existing and berthed, moored or anchored in the Harbor District as of December 1, 

2015, and do not meet the definition of “Vessel,” as set forth in Section 17.04.010 II, 

shall be allowed to continue to berth, moor or anchor in the Harbor District and shall not 

be required to meet the definition of Vessel. All other requirements of Title 17 of the 

Santa Barbara Municipal Code shall apply to these man-made floating objects, with the 

following exceptions: 

 
1. Waiver of operability requirements described in 17.20.005 K (I). 

 
2. No length or bean variations after December 1, 2015. 



Agenda Item No.  1 
File Code No.  520.02 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Emergency Services & Public Education Division, Fire Department 
 
SUBJECT: Receipt Of Grant From Santa Barbara County Community 

Awareness & Emergency Response for Outreach Materials in 
Spanish 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A. Authorize the receipt of grant funds totaling $750 from the Santa Barbara County 

Community Awareness & Emergency Response Committee; and 
B. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues by $750 in the Fire 

Department’s General Fund Emergency Services & Public Education Division for 
Fiscal Year 2016. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City of Santa Barbara’s Office of Emergency Services (OES) Public Education 
efforts are enhanced and supported by the receipt of this contribution from the Santa 
Barbara County Community Awareness & Emergency Response (CAER) Committee.  
CAER is an organization of emergency response agencies and community members 
that prepares for disasters involving hazardous materials. These funds will help support 
community outreach including Listos Day, which was held earlier this year. Listos is a 
basic emergency and disaster readiness public education program for Spanish-
speaking populations. 
 
The funds provided will be used to procure printed materials and other promotional 
materials including, but not limited to, Spanish coloring books, Listos pencils, badges, 
hats and Spanish family education tools. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
This $750 contribution will be appropriated in the Fire Department budget to cover costs 
associated with OES Public Education program. 
 
PREPARED BY: Yolanda McGlinchey, Emergency Services Manager 
SUBMITTED BY: Patrick McElroy, Fire Chief 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No.  2 
File Code No.  330.04 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Business Services Division, Waterfront Department 
 
SUBJECT: Five-Year Lease Agreement With The National Park Service, 

Channel Islands National Marine Sanctuary, And The Santa 
Barbara Maritime Museum for Visitor Center 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council approve a five-year lease agreement with the National Park Service, 
Channel Islands National Marine Sanctuary, and the Santa Barbara Maritime Museum 
for a 547 square-foot public Visitor Center located on the third floor of the Waterfront 
Center Building at 113 Harbor Way. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The National Park Service, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Association, Santa 
Barbara Maritime Museum, and the Waterfront Department proposed, designed, and 
constructed the Visitor Center in the former radio room located on the third floor of the 
Waterfront Center Building in 2000. The Visitor Center is open to the public free of 
charge, and provides marine and environmental education, focusing on the area of the 
Channel Islands National Park and the Channel Islands National Marine Sanctuary. 
Open daily from 10:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., the National Park Service and Maritime 
Museum volunteers operate the center and provide information to the public about 
these national resources and how to access them. 
 
The Visitor Center provides the public with an educational opportunity, complements the 
other uses in the building and the Harbor Commercial Area, provides greater exposure 
for the Harbor Commercial Area, and has been a model of intergovernmental 
cooperation in an effort to benefit the general public. Continuing with the current lease 
rate of $0 is a reasonable approach considering that the Visitor Center is open to the 
public, is free of charge, does not generate direct revenues, and is staffed by 
volunteers. 
 
The Harbor Commission recommended City Council approval of the proposed lease 
agreement at its meeting on October 15, 2015. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Five-Year Lease Agreement With The National Park Service, Channel Islands National 
Marine Sanctuary, And The Santa Barbara Maritime Museum for Visitor Center 
November 17, 2015 
Page 2 

 

ATTACHMENT: Site Map 
 
PREPARED BY: Brian J. Bosse, Waterfront Business Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Scott Riedman, Waterfront Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 





Agenda Item No.  3 
 

File Code No.  540.13 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Approval Of Emergency Purchase Order For Lugar Del Consuelo 

Sewer Main Replacement 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council approve an Emergency Purchase Order to Tierra Contracting, Inc., in the 
amount of $36,400 to replace a failing sewer main on Lugar Del Consuelo. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On June 2, 2015, Council awarded the Fiscal Year 2015 Sewer Main Rehabilitation 
Project to Southwest Pipeline and Trenchless Corporation (Southwest). The sewer main 
on Lugar Del Consuelo in the San Roque area was scheduled for rehabilitation on that 
contract.  The main consisted of 1920’s vitrified clay pipe, approximately 350’ long, and 
was in poor condition.   
 
As part of Southwest’s contract, they are required to clean and perform a pre-
rehabilitation Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) inspection, prior to rehabilitating any 
sewer main. Southwest performed the cleaning and pre-rehabilitation CCTV inspection; 
however, while reviewing the CCTV video, staff noticed that the sewer main was failing 
and needed immediate replacement.   
 
Staff contacted Tierra Contracting, Inc., (Tierra) to perform this emergency work 
because, on June 20, 2015, Council awarded them a contract to perform on-call sewer 
main repair work throughout the fiscal year. However, this work was outside the 
intended scope of work for the On-Call Sewer Main Repair contract, so an Emergency 
Purchase Order was issued to expedite the work. 
 
On October 12, 2015, Tierra began the emergency replacement, which took 
approximately two days to complete. Tierra’s final repair cost of $36,400 is based on the 
typical time and material billing method for Emergency Purchase Order construction 
contracts.   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of Emergency Purchase Order For Lugar Del Consuelo Sewer Main 
Replacement  
November 17, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
There are sufficient appropriated funds in the Wastewater Capital Fund to cover the cost of 
this Emergency Purchase Order. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Site Map 
 
PREPARED BY: Linda Sumansky, Principal Civil Engineer/LA/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

E A
LA

MA
R A

VE

CALLE
NOGUERA

PASEO

TRANQUILLO

LU
GA

R D
EL 

CO
NS

UE
LO

PASEO TRANQUILLO

PASEO DEL REFUGIO

PUESTA DEL SOL RD

PASEO DEL REFUGIO

CALLE ROSALES

Em
erg

en
cy 

Sew
er 

Ma
in R

ep
lac

em
en

t

¯
Legend

Emergency Sewer Main Replacement

City Sewer Mains

!!2 City Sewer Structures

0 300150
Feet

ATTACHMENT

City of Santa Barbara
Lugar Del Consuelo Sewer Main Replacement



Agenda Item No. 4 

File Code No.  270.06 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:  Treasury Division, Finance Department  
 
SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement For Property Tax Management 

Services 
 
RECOMMENDATION: That Council: 
 
A. Approve and authorize the Finance Director to execute a professional services 

agreement with HdL Coren & Cone to provide property tax management services, 
secured and unsecured parcel audits, budget projections, and Successor Agency 
support; and 

B. Allocate $14,000 from General Fund appropriated reserves to the Fiscal Year 2016 
Finance Department budget to cover the cost of the contract.  

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
For many years, the City of Santa Barbara has contracted for revenue recovery 
services, auditing services and revenue forecasting services for both sales tax and 
utility users’ tax revenues. The revenue recovery and auditing services have resulted in 
additional sales and utility users’ tax revenues for the City for many years. In addition, 
periodic reports provided through these agreements outlining the City’s annual and 
quarterly results, year-to date comparisons charts and segmented multi-year revenue 
projections have enabled the Finance Department to more accurately forecast sales tax 
and utility users’ tax revenues as part of the annual budget process.  
 
Through Fiscal Year 2015, rather than utilizing contracted services, the Finance 
Department has primarily used data provided by the County of Santa Barbara to 
establish property tax revenue estimates on an annual basis.  
 
Revenue projections are impacted by numerous factors, including ownership changes, 
assessment appeals, and Proposition 8 changes in value. However, the data provided 
by the County of Santa Barbara relative to these factors is limited or non-existent, and 
are not specific to a jurisdiction but rather are provided on a county-wide basis.  As 
such, it is difficult to project current and future property tax revenues, which is the 
General Fund’s largest revenue at $29 million.  



Council Agenda Report 
Professional Services Agreement For Property Tax Management Services  
November 17, 2015 
Page 2 

 

Staff recommends securing the services of a professional property tax management 
firm that would be able to provide comprehensive information of the City’s property tax 
revenues, similar to what is provided for sales tax and utility users’ tax, and that would 
be specific to the City. This would enable Finance staff to more accurately project 
property tax revenues as well and ensure the City is accurately receiving its share of 
these revenues from the County. 
 
After evaluating the proposals and qualifications of the two leading firms in this area, 
HdL Coren & Cone and MuniServices, staff recommends contracting with HdL Coren & 
Cone (HdL).  HdL is experienced in property tax revenue forecasting and property data 
audits and has proposed a scope of work that would provide revenue forecasting 
services, audits of secured and unsecured parcels, and Successor Agency revenue 
reporting. Included in the scope of work is a detailed revenue analysis and periodic 
reporting as well as ad-hoc reports available to the City via HdL’s web application. 
 
The fees associated with the proposed agreement with HdL are comprised of a fixed 
annual fee of $14,000 for base property tax management services, budget projections 
and Successor Agency support; and a contingency fee of 25% of the misallocated 
revenues identified in the secured and unsecured parcel audits.  
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Staff recommends allocating $14,000 from the General Fund appropriated reserves to 
the Finance Department to cover the cost of these services. Costs for the audit services 
will be offset by any revenues identified and collected as a result of the audits and, 
therefore, no appropriation authority is needed. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Julie Nemes, Treasury Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  7 
 

File Code No.  540.05 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Stage Three Drought Update 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council receive an update on the status of the current drought, drought-response 
capital projects, and continuing conservation efforts.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On February 11, 2014, Council declared a Stage One Drought Condition and set a goal 
to reduce customer water use by 20 percent. Council requested that staff provide a 
monthly status update on the City’s water supplies, conservation efforts, and current 
work efforts. On May 20, 2014, Council declared a Stage Two Drought Condition in 
response to a third consecutive year of below-average rainfall and the critical need to 
achieve a 20 percent reduction in water usage. On May 5, 2015, in response to the 
driest consecutive four-year period on record, Council declared a Stage Three Drought 
Emergency, increased the community’s water conservation target to 25 percent, and 
adopted additional water use regulations by resolution on May 12, 2015.  
 
This report will cover the following items: 
 

• Water Supply Outlook/Weather Forecast 
• Drought Response Capital Projects 
• Conservation Efforts 

 
Water Supply Outlook 
 
Rainfall for the last four years has averaged less than half of the long-term average. 
Consistent with the City’s Long Term Water Supply Plan, depleted surface water 
supplies have been replaced with increased groundwater production and purchases of 
supplemental water. This strategy has been successful in securing supplies sufficient to 
meet demand through 2016, assuming there is a 25 percent reduction in customer 
water use. In order to ensure adequate supplies to meet demand, supply projections 



Council Agenda Report 
Stage Three Drought Update 
November 17, 2015 
Page 2 

 

must recognize the potential for the current dry weather pattern to continue. 
Accordingly, staff’s supply projections through 2016 assume no significant deliveries 
from Gibraltar Reservoir, no additional Lake Cachuma entitlement, and insufficient 
rainfall in Northern California to allow for dependable supplemental water purchases or 
State water deliveries. By 2017, the primary remaining potable supply would be 
groundwater, which has a limited production capacity, and the City’s Charles E. Meyer 
Desalination Plant (Desalination Plant), which is scheduled to be reactivated by fall 
2016.   
 
Recent weather forecasts support an increased potential for strong El Niño conditions 
this winter. Such conditions are often associated with significant rainfall. However, there 
have also been years with strong El Niño conditions that have produced drier than 
average years. Given the unpredictable nature of El Niño events, this phenomenon 
cannot be counted on to improve the City’s water supply, and the City is planning for 
continued dry conditions. 
 
Drought Response Capital Projects 
 
The City successfully completed a seven-day test of the newly rehabilitated Recycled 
Water Treatment Plant  and, with the State’s approval, began distributing recycled water 
on November 2, 2015. All recycled water customers have been notified, letting them 
know the facility is back online, and restrictions on recycled water use are no longer 
necessary.   
 
Work continues to move forward on the reactivation of the Desalination Plant.  As a 
recap, the current plant reactivation will produce 3,125 acre feet annually for City water 
customers, and startup is scheduled for late September 2016, with a contract 
completion date of October 7, 2016.  Negotiations continue with the Montecito Water 
District on an arrangement to assist them with their current and long-term water needs.  
In accordance with the MOU initiating negotiations, the goal is to develop a draft 
agreement by January 2016.   
 
Conservation Efforts 
 
The City’s water customers continue to meet and exceed both the City’s and the State’s 
conservation targets with extraordinary conservation measures. Under the State’s 
current regulations, adopted in May 2015, mandated water use reductions for urban 
water suppliers range from 4 to 36 percent, depending on residential per-capita water 
use.  For Santa Barbara, the State-mandated water use reduction is 12 percent below 
2013 water usage, based on our summer 2014 residential water use of 79.6 gallons per 
person per day. However, the severity of the drought’s impact on local water supplies 
requires a citywide 25 percent reduction target to ensure the City has adequate supplies 
through 2016. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Stage Three Drought Update 
November 17, 2015 
Page 3 

 

The City’s water conservation numbers for October 2015 show a reduction of 28%, 
compared to 2013 water demands.  The community’s success at conserving water has 
been critical to minimizing the need for additional regulations and allowing for greater 
flexibility if drought conditions continue or worsen.   
 
With the Stage Three Drought Emergency declaration and the need for a 25 percent 
reduction, the Water Conservation Program has continued its enhanced public 
information campaign of targeted outreach to specific user types, including: 
 

• increased weekly messaging through social media, online news outlets, and 
industry contacts; 

• presentations to community and industry groups; 
• additional printed materials with drought messaging; 
• targeted utility bill messaging; 
• drought signage throughout the City; and 
• additional training and workshops. 

 
Revenues 
 
Water revenues for Fiscal Year 2016, which includes August through October revenues, 
shows revenues are down 10.5% from projected.  Given the revenue shortfall, staff has 
been looking at opportunities to temporarily reduce expenditures without compromising 
service.  A contract to study water rates for Fiscal Year 2017 is tentatively scheduled for 
Council consideration on November 24.   Staff will continue to monitor revenues and 
update Council on changes. 
 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Water Resources Manager/MW/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  8 

File Code No.  640.02 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Request From Councilmembers Hotchkiss And Francisco Regarding 

The Average Unit-Size Density Incentive Program 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council consider the request from Councilmembers Hotchkiss and Francisco 
regarding the Average Unit-Size Density (AUD) Incentive Program.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Attached is a memorandum from Councilmembers Hotchkiss and Francisco requesting 
that Council discuss the implementation of the AUD incentive program based on 
information from City staff at the joint City Council/Planning Commission meeting and on 
recent appeals of AUD projects.         
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Memorandum from Councilmembers Hotchkiss and Francisco 

 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Grisanti, Administrator’s Office Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



jnichoson
Typewritten Text

jnichoson
Typewritten Text

jnichoson
Typewritten Text

jnichoson
Typewritten Text

jnichoson
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT





Agenda Item No.  9 
 

File Code No.  640.07 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 17, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Approval Of 806 Alberta 

Avenue 
 
RECOMMENDATION: That Council: 
 
A. Deny the appeal of Catherine "Lily" Bastug Vicenti, David Hale, James and Karen 

Hurst, Roberta VanRossen, Susan Lafond, and Brian King, and uphold the 
Architectural Board of Review’s Project Design Approval of the proposed accessory 
dwelling unit and new garages at 806 Alberta Avenue; and 

 
B. Direct Staff to return to Council with Decision and Findings reflecting the outcome of 

the appeal. 

DISCUSSION: 
Project History 
On August 3, 2015, the Architectural Board of Review (ABR) granted Project Design 
Approval by a vote of 5/0/0 for an accessory dwelling unit and two new one-car garages at 
806 Alberta Avenue. On August 13, 2015, an appeal of the ABR decision was filed by the 
appellants, who are adjacent neighbors: Catherine "Lily" Bastug Vicenti, David Hale, 
James and Karen Hurst, Roberta VanRossen, Susan Lafond, and Brian King (Attachment 
1). The appellants assert that the project design is not consistent with the surrounding 
neighborhood, the project’s massing is not consistent with development patterns on the 
narrow street, and that the project negatively affects the appellants’ property values. 
Project Description 
The proposed project involves the construction of a 633 square foot, two-story accessory 
dwelling unit and two attached one-car garages of 210 square feet each at the rear of the 
site. The project proposes the demolition of an existing 182 square foot one-car garage, 
and illegal addition, fence and gate. The existing 650 square foot dwelling unit at the front 
of the site will remain unchanged. One additional uncovered tandem parking space in front 
of one of the garages is proposed for a total of three parking spaces. 

The subject parcel is zoned R-2 (Two-Family Residence Zone) and is located in the 
Westside neighborhood, two blocks west of San Andres Street. The project proposal also 
addresses violations identified in an enforcement case involving an illegal dwelling unit. 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Approval Of 806 Alberta Avenue 
November 17, 2015 
Page 2 

 

Total development on the 5,061 square foot parcel will be 1,703 square feet (Attachment 
2—Project Plans). 

ABR Review 
The ABR reviewed the proposal on three occasions (Attachment 3—ABR Minutes). 
Several neighbors who are now the appellants were in attendance at the first concept 
review on June 22, 2015 to voice compatibility concerns regarding the proposed project. 
The Board initially determined that the second-floor addition was small enough to be an 
acceptable addition to the building. However, in response to the neighbors’ concerns, the 
ABR asked the architect to study reducing the massing and size of the second story. The 
Board’s comments appeared focused on reducing possible privacy-related impacts to the 
adjacent neighbors by adjusting the second-floor windows. The Board also requested 
additional landscaping be provided for the project. 
On July 20, 2015, the project returned with minor design revisions, and the Board 
determined the project’s mass, bulk, and scale were acceptable; found the reduced size of 
windows facing the rear neighbor acceptable; and continued the project for further 
refinement of architectural details. 
On August 3, 2015, the project returned to the ABR with changes to the size and location 
of the second floor, slightly increasing the setback from one neighboring property. During 
this ABR hearing, other concerns were raised by neighbors involving the negative 
appearance of the structure, regulations that should not allow build-out of the small parcel, 
and the potential for future illegal uses of the property. Some Board members indicated 
that some of these issues were outside their purview. 
One Board member stated that the modest nature of the proposed project was sufficiently 
set back from the rear and side yards. It was also understood that the proposed project 
was intended for this type of small R-2 lot. 
The ABR granted Project Design Approval with additional comments regarding building 
materials. The ABR stated that the adjustments made to the second-story window 
locations sufficiently addressed the privacy concerns of the adjacent neighbor. 

APPEAL ISSUES 
Neighborhood Compatibility 
The appellants state that the ABR should only approve projects that are consistent with the 
patterns of development for the neighborhood. They specifically cite concerns with the 
two-story accessory unit being located at the back portion of the lot, which infringes on the 
privacy and sunlight access of adjacent properties. When the Municipal Code was 
amended in 2003 to allow Accessory Dwelling Units on R-2 zoned properties with a lot 
area of between 5,000 to 6,000 square feet, a proposal such as this was specifically 
envisioned. In order to accommodate two units and adequate parking, it is not uncommon 
that such projects would propose second-floor living areas above garage spaces. No 
zoning modifications are being requested; the project fits within the maximum unit size of 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Approval Of 806 Alberta Avenue 
November 17, 2015 
Page 3 

 

600 square feet and takes advantage of the reduced three-foot ground-floor setbacks 
allowed for garage structures. In addition, the proposed second-floor exterior walls are set 
back 10 to 15 feet from the property lines, which is beyond the minimum six-foot setback 
required. Furthermore, two-story structures and duplexes are found throughout the 
Westside neighborhood given the prevailing amount of R-2 and R-3 zoned properties. 
Staff agrees with the ABR and understands that while the project is unique for this 
particular street, it is not out of context with the immediate neighborhood (Attachment 4—
Aerial Vicinity Map). 
The appellants also express concern with the project designer’s lack of consultation with 
neighbors during the initial planning stage in order to help lessen project impacts. While 
this type of outreach is encouraged, it is not a mandatory step in the architectural design 
review process for multi-unit residential development. 
Zoning Ordinance Compliance and History of R-2 Zone Amendments  
The project complies with all Municipal Code regulations for the addition of an accessory 
dwelling unit on certain R-2 zoned lots between 5,000 and 6,000 square feet, as allowed 
per SBMC §28.18.075.E. The zoning regulations that allow accessory dwelling specifically 
address standards for setbacks, parking, open space, and maximum unit size. 
These accessory dwelling unit provisions were adopted by City Council in March 2003 
based on recommendations from the Housing Action Task Force as a strategy to increase 
the potential for affordable housing. The Westside neighborhood was identified as one of 
the larger areas of the City where these non-conforming, undersized R-2 lots existed. In 
2003, approximately 263 parcels of this 5,000 to 6,000 square foot lot size range existed 
on the Westside, 213 of which were developed with single-family units. Since that time, 
approximately 21 accessory dwelling units have been approved throughout the City, with 
only 9 in the Westside neighborhood. 
ABR Design Guidelines Consistency 
The appellants state that the approved project negatively affects property values, as 
allowing the project’s windows and balcony on the second story facing neighbors will 
encroach upon their privacy. The ABR’s design guidelines were amended following the 
adoption of the R-2 Zone accessory dwelling unit provisions to address these types of unit 
additions. It is staff’s opinion that the additional design guidelines listed under Attachment 
5 were adequately considered by the ABR as part of its Project Design Approval decision. 
The project includes a small second-floor element for the accessory dwelling unit (350 
s.f.), a small balcony (40 s.f.), and a few window openings that are purposefully set back 
away from property lines. The applicant adjusted the original design at the request of the 
ABR. One ABR member noted that the applicant had complied with previous requests 
from the Board to remove or reduce window size to address privacy concerns of adjoining 
neighbors even though the changes eliminated positive aesthetic aspects of the proposed 
project. Staff believes that the second-story design is of sufficient distance from other 
neighboring structures and that additional landscaping can be required as part of the final 
landscape plan to increase privacy screening, if necessary. Privacy issues would still be 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Approval Of 806 Alberta Avenue 
November 17, 2015 
Page 4 

 

evident if the design and location of the second story were shifted forward toward the 
center of the lot, as the appellants have requested. 
Environmental Review 

The project was found to be categorically exempt from environmental review pursuant to 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, Section 15183. This project 
is within the scope of build-out of the 2011 General Plan and the associated Program EIR.  
The project is consistent with the residential density designated and analyzed in the 
Program EIR, and potential adverse, significant project-specific environmental effects are 
addressed with existing development standards and regulations.   

Based on City staff analysis, no further environmental document is required for this project 
pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code §21083.3 
and Code of Regulations §15183- Projects Consistent with the General Plan).  The City 
Council environmental findings adopted for the 2011 General Plan apply to this project. A 
separate City Council finding that the project qualifies for the §15183 CEQA determination 
is required.  

CONCLUSION: 
The proposed project has undergone a thorough review by the ABR and staff. It is staff’s 
position that appropriate consideration has been given to the appellants’ concerns as part 
of the Architectural Board of Review process, the project is consistent with the Zoning 
Ordinance and compatible with the general development patterns in the immediate 
neighborhood, and the proposed design was modified to address the appellants’ privacy 
concerns. Staff recommends that Council deny the appeal and uphold the ABR’s decision 
to grant Project Design Approval making the following finding: 
The project is within the scope of build-out of the 2011 General Plan and the associated 
Program EIR.  The project is consistent with the residential density designated and 
analyzed in the Program EIR, and potential adverse, significant project-specific 
environmental effects are addressed with existing development standards and regulations.  
Therefore, no further environmental review is required pursuant to CEQA Guideline 
Section 15183.   
 
NOTE:  The project plans were delivered separately to City Council for review and are 
available for public review at the City Clerk’s office. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Appellant letter, dated 8/13/15 

2. Reduced site plan and building elevations 
3.  ABR Minutes, dated 6/22/15, 7/20/15, and 8/3/15 
4. Aerial Vicinity Map 
5. Excerpts of applicable ABR Design Guidelines 
  



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Approval Of 806 Alberta Avenue 
November 17, 2015 
Page 5 

 

PREPARED BY: Jaime Limón, Senior Planner II 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:    City Administrator's Office    



ATTACHMENT 1

































ATTACHMENT 2



5 gal dietes vegata 'variegata'
(striped leafed fortnight lily) (various)

Plant Legend
plan sym

bol, quantity, size, botanic, com
m

on

D
R

A
W

N
 :

JO
B

 :

D
A

T
E :

SC
A

LE :

SH
EET :

R
EV

ISIO
N

 :

SH
EET TITLE :

O
F

SH
EETS

landscape planning for:

1/8 =  1'-0"

C
.M

. 

 
5290 O

verpass R
oad

Suite 115
SA

N
TA

 BA
R

BA
R

A
C

A
, 93111

Ph: (805) 696-6864

C
a. License N

o. 3114

Landscape
A

rchitect &
A

ssociates, Inc.

C
M

+
LA+

C
harles 

M
cC

lure

since 1989

L-1 signature

date

A
C

M
L

C
harles P. M

cC
lure

landscape architect 
     C

a. Lic. N
o. 3114

        exp. 3-31-2017
      Santa B

arbara 
          Since 1988

 

806 Alberta Avenue
Santa Barbara, California

Mary Martinez

 Scale: 1/8" =
 1' 0"

w
hat can be conceived  can be created 

Planting Plan

M
ay 5,  2015

2

TH
E V

IN
E.

O
F ATTA

C
H

M
EN

T

2x ROOT BALL

2x R
O

O
T BA

LL

C
R

O
W

N
 O

F PLA
N

T TO
 B

E

PR
EPA

R
ED

 BA
C

K
 FILL M

IX
,

R
O

O
T BA

LL

TA
M

PED
 PR

EPA
R

ED
 BA

C
K

 FILL M
IX

.

W
A

TER
 SETTLE 100%

PO
SSIB

LE TO
 SU

R
FA

C
E

SET PLA
N

T A
S C

LO
SE A

S

R
EM

O
V

E N
U

R
SERY

 FR
A

M
E O

R
STA

K
E, SPR

EA
D

 B
R

A
N

C
H

ES
A

G
A

IN
ST SU

R
FA

C
E A

N
D

 ATTA
C

H

W
/ G

R
EEN

 N
U

R
SERY

 TA
PE U

SIN
G 

2 LO
O

PS:  O
N

E TIG
H

T O
N

 TH
E V

IN
E

TIE, A
N

D
 O

N
E LO

O
SELY

 TIED
 A

R
O

U
N

D

PLA
N

TED
 A

B
O

V
E FIN

ISH
 G

R
A

D
E

2" M
U

LC
H

 LAY
ER

W
A

LL

TY
IN

G
 D

ETA
IL

N
O

T TO
 SC

A
LE

V
IN

E PLA
N

TIN
G

 & 
K

TO
 H

O
R

IZ
O

N
TA

L W
IR

ES

SH
R

U
B

 PLA
N

TIN
G

 D
ETA

IL
J

N
O

T TO
 SC

A
LE

1.

2.

2x ROOT BALL

2x R
O

O
T BA

LL

M
IX

, W
ATER

 SETTLE

TA
M

PED
 PR

EPA
R

ED
B

A
C

K
 FILL M

IX
.

W
A

TER
 BA

SIN
 W

ITH 

C
R

O
W

N
 O

F 1" PLA
N

T TO
 B

E

PR
EPA

R
ED

 BA
C

K
 FILL

D
EPR

ESSED
 BA

SIN
 W

/

PLA
N

TED
 A

B
O

V
E FIN

ISH
 G

R
A

D
E

R
O

O
T BA

LL

FIN
ISH

 G
R

A
D

E

M
U

LC
H 

N
O

TES:2" M
U

LC
H

 LAY
ER

2" D
IA

. LO
D

G
E PO

LE PIN
E STA

K
E, PR

ESSU
R

E

PR
EV

A
ILIN

G
 W

IN
D

3x R
O

O
T BA

LL

TR
EE PLA

N
TIN

G
 D

ETA
IL

I
2x ROOT BALL

TR
EE TR

U
N

K
 PR

O
TEC

TO
R

S
R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 O
N

 A
LL TR

EES

IN
 LA

W
N

 A
R

EA
S

2" M
U

LC
H

 LAY
ER

.

R
O

O
T BA

LL

B
A

C
K

 FILL M
IX

PR
EPA

R
ED

 BA
C

K
 FILL M

IX

TA
M

PED
 PR

EPA
R

ED

FIN
ISH

 G
R

A
D

E

N
O

T TO
 SC

A
LE

N
O

TES:

TR
EA

TED
. ±

3" JO
IN

 TO
 G

R
O

U
N

D
.

1-1/2" A
B

O
V

E FIN
ISH

 G
R

A
D

E.
C

R
O

W
N

 O
F PLA

N
T TO

 B
E PLA

N
TED

R
EM

O
V

E A
LL N

U
R

SERY
 STA

K
IN

G
.

"C
IN

C
H

-TIE"- ATTA
C

H
 PER

 M
A

N
U

F.
IN

STR
U

C
TIO

N
S.

W
A

TER
 BA

SIN
 - 3" TH

IC
K

 W
ITH

2. 1.

Planting Plan

7-22-15 revised
pre A

B
R

 com
m

ents

5 gal m
ahonia aquafolium

 'com
pacta'

L
a

n
d

sca
p

e C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce R
eq

u
irem

en
ts 

L
a
n

d
sca

p
e D

esig
n

 fo
r W

a
ter C

o
n

serv
a

tio
n

 

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce S
ta

tem
en

t 

M
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 M

ea
su

res: 
(S

h
o

w
 ca

lcu
la

tio
n

s o
f req

u
ired

 a
rea

s o
n
 referen

ced
 sh

eets) 

S
h

eet#

 
N

o
 tu

rf in
 p

ark
w

ay
s, m

ed
ian

s o
r o

th
er areas w

ith
 an

y
 d

im
en

sio
n
 o

f <
 8

 feet 
 

 

 
N

o
 tu

rf o
n

 >
2
0

%
 slo

p
e 

 
 

 
F

o
r resid

en
tial, m

ix
ed

-u
se an

d
 in

stitu
tio

n
al p

ro
jects, 8

0
%

 o
r >

 o
f lan

d
scap

e area w
ater w

ise p
lan

ts 

F
o

r co
m

m
ercial, 1

0
0

%
 o

f lan
d

scap
e area w

ater w
ise p

lan
ts 

 
 

 
F

o
r resid

en
tial, <

2
0

%
 o

f area in
 tu

rf o
f h

ig
h

-w
ater u

sin
g

 p
lan

ts 
 

 

 
T

h
ree in

ch
es o

f m
u

lch
 sp

ecified
 as req

u
ired

 
 

 

 
A

reas o
f sp

rin
k

ler co
v

erag
e av

o
id

s o
v

ersp
ray

 an
d
 ru

n
o

ff, in
clu

d
in

g
 o

p
tim

u
m

 d
istrib

u
tio

n
 

u
n

ifo
rm

ity
, h

ead
-to

-h
ead

 sp
acin

g
 an

d
 setb

ack
s fro

m
 w

alk
w

ay
s an

d
 p

av
em

en
t 

 
 

 
S

p
rin

k
lers h

av
e m

atch
ed

 p
recip

itatio
n

 rates w
ith

in
 each

 v
alv

e an
d
 circu

it 
 

 

 
V

alv
es sep

arated
 fo

r in
d

iv
id

u
al h

y
d

ro
zo

n
es b

ased
 o

n
 p

lan
t w

ater n
eed

s an
d

 su
n

/sh
ad

e req
u

irem
en

ts 
 

 

 
W

eath
er b

ased
 irrig

atio
n

 co
n

tro
ller w

ith
 a rain

 sh
u
to

ff sen
so

r fo
r th

e en
tire irrig

atio
n
 sy

stem
 if 

in
clu

d
in

g
 an

 au
to

m
atic irrig

atio
n

 sy
stem

 
 

 

 
A

reas less th
an

 8
’ w

id
e irrig

ated
 o

n
ly

 w
ith

 b
u

b
b

lers, ro
tatin

g
 n

o
zzles o

n
 p

o
p

-u
p

 b
o

d
ies, su

b
-

su
rface, o

r d
rip

 irrig
atio

n
 

 
 

 
D

rip
/lo

w
 v

o
lu

m
e irrig

atio
n
 sy

stem
 o

n
 >

2
5

%
 o

f lan
d
scap

ed
 area 

 
 

 
C

h
eck

 v
alv

es at lo
w

 en
d

 o
f irrig

atio
n

 lin
es to

 p
rev

en
t u

n
w

an
ted

 d
rain

in
g

 o
f irrig

atio
n

 lin
es 

 
 

 
P

ressu
re reg

u
lato

rs, u
n
less th

e P
u

b
lic W

o
rk

s D
irecto

r d
eterm

in
atio

n
 o

n
e is n

o
t n

ecessary
 

 
 

 
G

rad
in

g
 en

co
u

rag
es w

ater reten
tio

n
 an

d
 in

filtratio
n

 b
y

 p
reserv

in
g

 o
p

en
 sp

ace an
d

 creatin
g

 

d
ep

ressed
 areas/sw

ales 
 

 

 
G

rad
in

g
 m

im
ics n

atu
ral, p

re-d
ev

elo
p

m
en

t h
y

d
ro

lo
g

ic flo
w

 p
ath

s an
d
 m

ain
tain

s an
d
/o

r in
creases th

e 

w
id

th
 o

f flo
w

 p
ath

s in
 o

rd
er to

 d
ecrease flo

w
 rates 

 
 

I state th
at I am

 fam
iliar w

ith
 th

e L
an

d
scap

e D
esig

n
 S

tan
d
ard

s fo
r W

ater C
o
n

serv
atio

n
 as m

o
st recen

tly
 ad

o
p
ted

 

b
y

 th
e S

an
ta B

arb
ara C

ity
 C

o
u
n

cil an
d

 th
at th

e lan
d

scap
e d

esig
n
 fo

r th
is p

ro
ject co

m
p

lies w
ith

 th
o
se stan

d
ard

s. 

It is m
y

 u
n

d
erstan

d
in

g
 th

at v
erificatio

n
 o

f co
m

p
lian

ce w
ill b

e n
ecessary

 u
p

o
n

 fin
al b

u
ild

in
g
 in

sp
ectio

n
.  I sh

all 

in
sp

ect th
e co

m
p

leted
 in

stallatio
n

 an
d

 I w
ill su

b
m

it in
 w

ritin
g

 th
at th

e in
stallatio

n
 su

b
stan

tially
 co

n
fo

rm
s to

 th
e 

ap
p

ro
v

ed
 p

lan
s. 

 
 

 
 

S
ig

n
atu

re 
N

am
e 

 
 

 
 

L
icen

se #
 

E
x
p
. D

ate 

H
:\G

ro
u
p

 F
o

ld
ers\P

L
A

N
\H

a
n

d
o

u
ts\O

fficial H
an

d
o

u
ts\D

e
sig

n
 R

e
v
ie

w
\L

a
n
d

scap
e C

o
m

p
lia

n
ce R

eq
u

ire
m

e
n
ts.d

o
c 

R
ev

ised
 S

ep
te

m
b

er 1
0

, 2
0
0

8
 

C
ity o

f S
a

n
ta

 B
a

rb
a

ra
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
u

n
ter / 6

3
0

 G
a

rd
en

 S
t. / (8

0
5

) 5
6

4
-5

5
7

8
 

P
a

g
e 2

 o
f 2

 

W
ater C

om
pliance Statem

ent

L-1

L-1

L-1

L-1

L-2

****

 C
al. 3114

3-31-2015

C
harles M

cC
lure

*  grading and drainage by others

pressure com
pensating specified

**

*
*  irrigation not required for single fam

ily
(irrigation by C

-27 contractor)

**

**********

1 - 15 gal avocado (haas)
install per detail on this sheet

e

e
e

new
 paver

 drivew
ay

new
 paver

 drivew
ay

e

existing drought tolerant landscape 
in front of house including: aracaria heterophylla (star pine)
senecio m

alandracea (blue iceplant), agave attenuata,
sandstone boulders 

(e) w
m

existing stepping stone
to rear area (perm

eable)

3 - 5 gal pyrostegia venusta
(flam

e vine) 
provide galvanized 

w
ire supports

V
IN

ES
provide galvanized w

ire supports as applicable

1 gal trachelosperm
um

 jasm
inioides

(star jasm
ine)

1 gal rosm
arinus prostratus 'irene'

5 gal trachelosperm
um

 jasm
inioides

(star jasm
ine), provide galvanized 

w
ire supports

1 gal m
iscanthus sinensis ''adagio'

(ncn)

1 gal aloe variegata

existing tree (purple plum
)

existing king palm

existing eugenia hedge

existing eugenia hedge

existing eugenia hedge

existing eugenia hedge

3" deep gravel m
ulch

(palm
 springs gold 3/8" angular), 

rem
ove soil as necessary

m
eet w

ith finished surface -1/2" typical

1 gal aloe blue elf

(e) tan gravel 
in parkw

ay

existing access path

(e) tan gravel 
in parkw

ay

5 gal citrus (eureka lem
on)

7-22-15

50.00'

101.22'

101.22

50.00'

E
X

IS
TIN

G
PAV

E
R

D
R

IV
E

W
AY

alberta  ave.

N
E

IG
H

B
O

R
'S 

  G
A

R
A

G
E

E
X

IS
TIN

G
 6' TA

LL
W

O
O

D
 FE

N
C

E

E
X

IS
TIN

G
 6' TA

LL
W

O
O

D
 FE

N
C

E

E
X

IS
TIN

G
 6' TA

LL
W

O
O

D
 FE

N
C

E

exist. plaster cols. w
/30" high plaster 

w
all &

 w
rought iron fence above

existing sidew
alk



















 

ATTACHMENT 4



ABR Design Guidelines Excerpt - Page 11 

 

1.9.2 Two Family (R-2) Zone Accessory Dwelling Units.  Review of accessory 
dwelling units proposed on lots with a total lot area of between 5,000 and 6,000 
square feet in the R-2 Zone shall be guided by the following.  Also, note 
landscaping guidelines specific to the R-2 zone in the ABR Landscaping 
Guidelines. 
A. Accessory dwelling units shall be reviewed for neighborhood compatibility 

and neighborhood character preservation. 
B. Encourage existing building preservation when feasible. 
C. Consider second-story window placement in relationship to neighboring 

buildings to preserve the privacy of existing uses on neighboring parcels. 
D. Fencing or barriers consistent with zoning shall be required along driveways 

to prevent parking on front yards. 
 
ABR Landscape Design Guidelines Excerpt - Page 32 

 
 

2.3.3 Two-Family (R-2) Zone 

Two-family (R-2) Zone projects are subject to the following guidelines.  These 
projects should also be designed with special consideration for consistency with 
Street and Driveway Guideline 2.4.B, above. 

A. Street Presence.  Street presence is an important consideration.  When 
required private outdoor living space is provided in the front yard, avoid high 
hedges and/or solid walls.   

B. Open Yard Area Landscaping. The required 600 square foot open yard 
area should include landscaping (e.g. trees and plant materials). 
 

C. Pavement Minimization. Consider the great value in minimizing pavement 
to the fullest extent possible and including pervious surfaces.  

 

ATTACHMENT 5



Agenda Item No.  ________ 
File Code No. 140.05  

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: October 20, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Clerk’s Office, Administrative Services Department 
 
SUBJECT: Interviews For City Advisory Groups 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Hold interviews of applicants to various City Advisory Groups; and 
B. Continue interviews of applicants to October 17, 2015, and November 17, 2015. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Interviews of applicants for various positions on City Advisory Groups are to be held on 
October 20, 2015, at an estimated time of 4:00 p.m.  Applicants will also have the option to 
be interviewed on October 27, 2015, at an estimated time of 4:00 p.m. and November 17, 
2015, at 6:00 p.m. 
 
For the current 56 vacancies, 58 individuals submitted 61 applications.  A list of eligible 
applicants and pertinent information about the City Advisory Groups is attached to this 
report. 
 
Applicants have been notified that to be considered for appointment they must be 
interviewed.  Applicants have been requested to prepare a 2-3 minute verbal presentation, 
in response to a set of questions specific to the group for which they are applying.  
Applicants applying to more than one advisory group may have up to 5 minutes for their 
presentation. 
 
Appointments are scheduled to take place on December 8, 2015. 
 
ATTACHMENT: List of Applicants 
 
PREPARED BY: Deborah L. Applegate, Deputy City Clerk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Kristy Schmidt, Administrative Services Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 

1 
Annual Recruitment 2015 

 ACCESS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

• One vacancy. 
• Term Expiration:   

 One term:  December 31, 2017 
• Qualifications/Category:  Resident of the City or a full-time employee of an entity doing business within the City 

who demonstrates an interest, experience, and commitment to issues pertaining to disability and access. 
 One representative from the Architectural/Engineering/Building Community. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Architectural/Engineering
/Building Community (1) 

Shella Comin-DuMong    

James R. Marston    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2     

ARCHITECTURAL BOARD OF REVIEW 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 December 31, 2019 
• Qualifications/Category:   

 Qualified elector of the City.  
(At this time ABR has met the minimum licensing requirements and may appoint non-licensed architects.) 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 
 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of 
the City  (2)  

Kirk B. Gradin 12/31/2011 - 12/31/2015 
(4 years) 

 Licensed Architect 

Kevin Moore   Licensed Architect 

Joan Rutkowski    

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3     

ARTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

• Three vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 December 31, 2019 
• Qualifications/Category:  

 Member should be a qualified elector with the City or County with acknowledged accomplishments in the 
arts and demonstrates an interest in and commitment to cultural and arts activities.  

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 
 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of 
the City (2 or 3)  

Joan Rosenberg-Dent    

Linda Wolcott Moore    

Thea A. Palencia    

William Smithers    

John Thomas  Also applied: 
     Neighborhood Advisory 
     Parks & Recreation 
     Rental Housing Mediation Board 

 

Nathan Vonk 12/13/2011 – 12/31/2015 
(4 Years) 

  

Margie Yahyavi 12/09/2014 – 12/31/2015 
(1 Year) 

  

Qualified Elector of 
SB County (0 -1) 

Darian Bleecher 06/22/2004, 12/18/2007, 
12/13/2011 – 12/31/2015  

(11 Years) 

  

Nancy Gifford    

Albert Mercado    

 
 



4     

 
CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION 

 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 December 31, 2019 
• Qualifications/Categories: 

 Must be a qualified elector of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government, and for one year after 

ceasing to be a member, shall not be eligible for any salaried office or employment with the City. 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of the 
City (2) 

Alan T. Kasehagen 11/25/2003, 12/18/2007, 
12/13/2011 – 12/31/2015 

(12 Years) 

  

Donna Lewis 06/28/2005, 12/18/2007, 
12/13/2011 – 12/31/2015 

(10 Years) 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5     

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 

• Five vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 One term expires December 31, 2016 (Lower Westside Neighborhood) 
 One term expires December 31, 2018 (Human Services Agencies) 
 Three terms expire December 31, 2019 (Eastside Neighborhood, Senior Community, Youth Oriented     

                                                                                             Services) 
• Must be residents or employees of the designated organizations, but need not be qualified electors of the City, 

and must represent one of the specified categories or organizations.  One representative from each: 
 Lower Westside 

Neighborhood 
 Human Services Agencies 
 Eastside Neighborhood 

  Youth Oriented Services 
 Senior Community 

 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Lower Westside 
Neighborhood (1) 

None.    

Human Services Agencies 
(1) 

None.    

Eastside Neighborhood (1) Nicolas M. Crisosto  1) Community Development & Human 
Services Committee 

2) Neighborhood Advisory Committee 
3) Rental Housing Mediation Board 

 

Veronica Loza 07/03/2007, 12/18/2007, 
12/13/2011 – 12/31/2015 

(8 Years) 

  

Youth Oriented Services (1) None.    

Senior Community (1) Doedy Orchowski 06/24/2014 – 12/31/ 2015  
(1 Year) 

  

                                                                   



6     

                                                               COMMUNITY EVENTS & FESTIVALS COMMITTEE 

• Four vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 Four terms expire December 31, 2019 (Business/Lodging/Retail Industry, Cultural Arts) 
• Qualifications/Category: 

 Three representatives from the Business/Lodging/Retail Industry. 
 One representative from Cultural Arts. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Business/Lodging/ Retail 
Industry (3) Katrina Carl* 12/17/2013 – 12/31/2015 

(2 Years) 
  

Antoinette Chartier    

Barry Dorsey 06/23/2015 – 12/31/2015 
(6 Months) 

  

Brad Nack* 06/24/14 – 12/31/2015 
(1 Year, 6 Months) 

  

Doreen Stevenson    

Cultural Arts (1) Katrina Carl* 12/17/2013 – 12/31/2015 
(2 Years) 

  

 Brad Nack* 06/24/14 – 12/31/2015 
(1 Year, 6 Months) 

  

                                                                    *Eligible for more than one category.                        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7     

 
CREEKS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

• Four vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:   

 December 31, 2019 
• Qualifications/Category: 

 Member must be a resident of the City or County of Santa Barbara and shall have some experience in 
ocean use, business, environmental issues and provide community-at-large representation.  

 Total of four (4) positions open 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Resident of the City or 
County of Santa 
Barbara  
(0-4) 

James Hawkins 12/17/2013 – 12/31/2015 
(2 Years) 

 City 

Lee Moldaver 07/11/2006, 12/18/2007, 
12/13/2011 – 12/31/2015 

(9 Years) 

 City 

Kathleen “Betsy” 
Weber 

12/13/2009, 12/13/2011 – 
12/31/2015 
(5 Years) 

 City 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8     

DOWNTOWN PARKING COMMITTEE 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:  

 December 31, 2019 
• Qualifications/Category:   

 Appointee shall demonstrate an interest and knowledge of downtown parking issues and must be a 
resident of the City. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Resident of the City (2) Ed France 06/23/2015 – 12/31/2015 
(6 Months) 

  

Ethan Shenkman    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9     

FIRE AND POLICE COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:   

 Two terms expire, December 31, 2019. 
• Qualifications/Category: 

 Qualified elector of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Electors of 
the City (2) 

Melody Joy Baker   
 

Jennifer Christensen 12/15/2009, 12/13/2011 
– 12/31/2019 

(10 Years) 

 
 

John J. Torell 12/13/2011 – 
12/31/2015 
(4 Years) 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10     

 
 

FIRE AND POLICE PENSION COMMISSION 
 

• Three vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:   

 One term expires December 31, 2017 (Active/Retired Police Officer) 
 Two terms expire December 31, 2018 (Qualified Electors) 

• Qualifications/Categories: 
 Two qualified electors of the City who are not an active fire fighters or police officers. 
 One active or retired police officer who is a member of the Fire and Police Pension System who need not 

be a resident or elector of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Electors (2) Derek L. Pacheco  1) Fire and Police Pension 
Commission 

2) Harbor Commission 
3) Planning Commission 

 

Scott Tracy 12/16/2008, 12/07/2010 
– 12/31/2015 

(7 Years) 

  

Active or Retired 
Police Officer Who is 
a Member of the Fire 
and Police Pension 
System (1) 

None.   . 

 
 

 
 



11     

HARBOR COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:   

 December 31, 2019  
• Qualifications/Categories: 

 Qualified elector of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of 
the City (2) 

Stephen MacIntosh 06/24/2014 – 12/31/2015 
(1 Year, 6 Months) 

 
 

Derek Pacheco  1) Fire and Police Pension 
Commission 

2) Harbor Commission 
3) Planning Commission 

  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12     

HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expiration: 

 Two terms:  December 31, 2019 
• Qualifications/Categories:  One member shall be a qualified elector of the City (Public at Large) and one member 

may be a non-resident (Public at Large).    
 Two members must be a qualified electors of the City and two members may be non-residents (Public at 

Large) 
 (At this time HLC has met the minimum architect licensing requirements and may appoint non-licensed 

architects.) 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Public at Large (2) 
 

Michael Drury 07/01/2008, 12/13/2011 – 
12/31/2015 

(6 Years, 6 Months) 

 City (Public at Large) 

Wendy M. Edmunds   City (Public at Large) 

Anthony Grumbine   Non-resident (Public at 
Large) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



13     

COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA LIBRARY ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA REPRESENTATIVE 

 

• One vacancy. 
     One member from each County District (5), 8 City Nominees (Carpinteria, Santa Barbara, Lompoc, Santa Maria,   
     Solvang, Guadalupe, Goleta, and Buellton), and 1 County Service Area 3 representative.   

• Term Expiration: 
 June 30, 2016 

• Qualifications/Categories: 
 Member must be a qualified elector of the City. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector  (1) Patricia Saley    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



14     

LIBRARY BOARD 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 December 31, 2019 
• Qualifications/Categories: 

 Qualified elector of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector  (2) None.    

 



15     

LIVING WAGE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

• One vacancy. 
• Term Expirations: 

 June 30, 2016 (Employee of Local Santa Barbara Area Non-Profit Entity) 
• Qualifications/Categories: 

 One member of the Committee shall be employed by a local Santa Barbara area non-profit entity. 
 

 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Employed by a Local Santa Barbara 
Area Non-Profit Entity (1) 

None.    



16     

MEASURE P COMMITTEE 
 

• Four vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 One term expires December 31, 2016 (Criminal Defense Attorney) 
 One term expires December 31, 2016 (Civil Liberties Advocate) 
 One term expires December 31, 2018 (Resident of the City) 
 One term expires December 31, 2018 (Drug Abuse, Treatment & Prevention Counselor) 

• Qualifications/Categories: 
 Criminal Defense Attorney  Resident of the City 
 Civil Liberties Advocate  Drug Abuse, Treatment & Prevention 

Counselor 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Criminal Defense Attorney (1) None.    

Civil Liberties Advocate (1) None.    

Resident of the City (1) None.    

Drug Abuse, Treatment & 
Prevention Counselor (1) 

None.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



17     

NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY COUNCIL 
 

• Three vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 Terms expire December 31, 2019 
• Qualifications/Categories:   

 Public at Large (2) 
 One representative must 

be from the Eastside 
Neighborhood 

  

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Public at Large (0-1) Nicolas M. Crisosto*  1) Community Development and 
Human Services Committee 

2) Neighborhood Advisory 
Committee 

3) Rental Housing Mediation 
Task Force 

 

John Thomas*  Also applied: 
Neighborhood Advisory 
Parks & Recreation 
Rental Housing Mediation Board 

 

Eastside 
Neighborhood 
Representative (1-2) 

Nicolas M. Crisosto*  1) Community Development and 
Human Services Committee 

2) Neighborhood Advisory 
Committee 

3) Rental Housing Mediation 
Task Force 

 

John Thomas*  Also applied: 
        Neighborhood Advisory 
        Parks & Recreation 
        Rental Housing Mediation Board 

 

                                            *Eligible for more than one category.                        
 
 



18     

 
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expiration: 

 One term expires December 31, 2016 
 One term expires December 31, 2019 

• Qualifications/Categories: 
 Qualified electors of the City.  

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified 
Elector of the 
City (2) 

LeeAnne French 12/09/2014 – 12/31/2015 
(1 Year) 

  

John Thomas  Also applied: 
        Neighborhood Advisory 
        Parks & Recreation 
        Rental Housing Mediation Board 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



19     

 
 
 
 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:  

 December 31, 2019. 
• Qualifications/Categories:  

 Qualified elector of the City 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of 
the City (2) 

John P. Campanella 01/24/2012 – 12/31/2015 
(3 Years)   

Derek L. Pacheco  1) Fire and Police Pension Commission 
2) Harbor Commission 
3) Planning Commission 

 

Addison Thompson 12/31/2011 – 12/31/2015 
(4 Years) 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



20     

RENTAL HOUSING MEDIATION BOARD 
 

• Four vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 Terms expire December 16, 2019              
• Qualifications/Categories:  Non-City members must be affiliated with a landlord tenant organization within City 

limits. 
 Two Tenants (City or County)   
 One Landlord (City or County) 
 One Homeowner (City or County)     

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
  

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Tenant - City or County 
(2) 

David Brainard 06/28/2011, 12/31/2011 – 
12/31/2015 

(3 Years, 6 Months) 

 City 

Lynn E. Goebel 06/30/2009, 12/15/2009, 
12/17/2013 – 12/31/2015 

(5 Years, 6 Months) 

 City 

John Thomas  Also applied: 
     Neighborhood Advisory 
     Parks & Recreation 
     Rental Housing Mediation Board 

City 

Jayme Turla   City 

Landlord – City or 
County (1) 

None.    

Homeowner – City or 
County (1) 

Nicolas M. Crisosto  1) Community Development and 
Human Services Committee 

2) Neighborhood Advisory 
Committee 

3) Rental Housing Mediation 
Board 

City 



21     

 
SANTA BARBARA YOUTH COUNCIL 

• Twelve vacancies. 
• Term Expiration: 

 One term expires June 30, 2016, (Local Alternative, Community, or Continuation HS) 
 

• Qualifications/Categories:  Members must be between the ages of 13-19 years. 
 One member from local alternative, community, or continuation high 

school (City or County). 
  

 

                       *Applicants must appear for an interview before the Santa Barbara Youth Council and City Council. 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years 

Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Members From Local 
Alternative, Community, 
or Continuation High 
School (1) 

None.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



22     

 
SINGLE FAMILY DESIGN BOARD 

 

 Two vacancies. 
 Terms expire June 30, 2019 (Professional Qualifications); and 

One term expires June 30, 2018 (Licensed Architect). 
 Members shall reside within Santa Barbara County. 
 One member shall be a licensed architect; 
 One member shall possess professional qualifications in fields related to architecture, including, but not limited to, 

building design, structural engineering, industrial design, or landscape contracting. 
 Members may serve on the Architectural Board of Review or the Historic Landmarks Commission and the Single 

Family Design Board. 
 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Licensed Architect 
(1) 

Fred L. Sweeney 06/28/2011 – 12/31/2015 
(4 Years)   

Professional 
Qualifications (1) 

Lisa E. James 06/26/2012 – 12/31/2015 
(2 Years, 6 Months)   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



23     

 
WATER COMMISSION 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:   

 Terms expire December 31, 2019. 
• Qualifications/Categories: 

 Qualified elector of the City.  
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector (2) 
 

Megan Birney 06/26/2012 – 12/31/2015 
(3 Years) 

  

James Davis    

Larry C. Falberg    

Barry Keller 07/01/2008, 12/13/2011 – 
12/31/2015  

(6 Years, 6 Months) 

  

Jordan Sager    

 


	1.DOC
	2.DOC
	3.DOC
	4.DOC
	5.DOC
	6.DOC
	7.PDF
	8.DOC
	9.PDF
	10.DOC
	11.DOC
	12.DOC
	13.PDF
	14.DOC
	15.PDF
	16.PDF
	17.PDF
	18.PDF
	19.PDF
	20.DOC
	21.DOC
	Mayor
	Bendy White
	NOVEMBER 17, 2015
	AGENDA
	ORDER OF BUSINESS



